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Invitation for Bids (IFB) 25-004 ~ Q&A 

Waste Collection & Recycling Services 

Q1 What are the materials being disposed of in the 30 Yard Container?  
 

A1 Couches, big furniture, big branches, left over items from tenants during unit turn, etc.  
 

Q2 Does the Contractor change landfill disposal fees per ton on the invoice?  

A2 Yes 
 

Q3 Where does the Contractor list the 30 Yard Container removal charge? 
 

A3 On invoice 
 

Q4 Where does the Contractor list the 30 Yard Container trip charge if container is blocked? 
 

A4 On invoice 
 

Q5 Where does the Contractor list the 30 Yard Container monthly rental charge? 
 

A5 On invoice 
 

Q6 For the “Charge to Pull/Reset 30 Yard Container” – should the Contract list the per haul 
charge including delivery? 
 

A6 Yes 
 

Q7 For the “Charge to Deliver/Pull 30 Yard Container” – should the Contract list the per haul 
charge including delivery? 
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A7 Yes 
 

Q8 County Issued Disposal Increase - If the County increases disposal costs per ton, can the 
Contractor pass thru these rate increases automatically?  

 

A8 Yes, with notice and documentation to support increase 
 

Q9 Overloaded Dumpsters - Can the Contractor charge for dumpsters that are 2-feet or more 
overloaded above the top rim of the dumpster with photo proof of the overage? If so, can this 
be added to the rate sheet? 
 

A9 This item should not occur often and may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q10 Locking Lids - Can the Contractor charge a monthly rate for dumpsters (trash & recycle) that 
require a locking lid? 
 

A10 Not applicable as none of the dumpsters have a locking lid 
 

Q11 Wheels - Can the Contractor charge a monthly rate for dumpsters (trash & recycle) that 
require wheels? These are only available for 2yd or 4yd sizes due them being lighter 
dumpsters. 
 

A11 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q12 Extra Pick-up Requests - Can the Contractor charge a per haul rate for dumpsters (trash & 
recycle) that require an extra pick-up? The extra pick-up would be those requested by the 
customer. 
 

A12 Yes 
 

Q13 Can the 6-cubic yard dumpster be the plastic lid flip-up style lid? Only the 8yd has a side door 
that slides open. 
 

A13 No, the dumpsters must have a side door due to ADA requirements 
 

Q14 Statement of Work-Waste Collections for each location shown below does not match the 
chart in the bid documents. Is this correct to use for an updated chart?  
 

A14 See updated chart in Addendum #1 
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Q15 Can you update the Bid Form page 70 of the response to include the correct container types, 

sizes, quantities to match the bid specs? 
 

 
 

A15 See updated chart in Addendum #1 
 

Q16 Recycle Contamination - Typically, a predictable level of contamination is less than 15% of 
collected recycling. Can the Contractor charge for recycling containers that contain more 
than 16% recycling contamination in the load with photo proof of the recycling 
contamination? If so, can this be added to the rate sheet?  
 

A16 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q17 Bagged Recycling - Plastic bags become entangled within the sorting equipment, significantly 
hindering processing operation at the recycling processing facility. Can you add the following 
language to the contract? “No plastic film or bags of any kind allowed in recycling 
container(s)”  
 

A17 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q18 Recyclable Materials – The following list of acceptable materials is reflective of today’s 
market reality and includes only materials that meet industry quality standards and have 
viable market demands. Will you accept the following as the only Acceptable Single Stream 
Recycling Materials that may be placed in the recycling container?  
 

SINGLE STREAM SPECIFICATIONS RECYCLABLE MATERIALS must be dry, loose (not 
bagged), un-shredded, empty, and include ONLY the following:  
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Aluminum cans  Newspaper  
PET bottles with the symbol #1 – with screw tops 
only  

Mail  

HDPE plastic bottles with the symbol #2 (milk, 
water bottles detergent, and shampoo bottles, etc.)  

Uncoated paperboard (ex. cereal 
boxes; food and snack boxes)  

PP plastic bottles and tubs with symbol # 5 - empty  Uncoated printing, writing and office 
paper  

Steel and tin cans  Old corrugated 
containers/cardboard (uncoated)  

Magazines, glossy inserts, and pamphlets  
 
 

 

A18 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q19 Definition of Waste - Will you provide language in the contract that you warrant and agree that 
the waste to be collected and disposed of will not contain any radioactive, corrosive, 
flammable, explosive, biomedical, infectious, hazardous, or toxic substance or material (as 
defined by or listed under applicable federal, state, or local laws or regulations)?  
 

A19 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q20 Days of Service - The Contractor is not open on Sundays and major Holidays. Can you add to 
the contract the following, “Service excludes Sundays and Holidays when Contractor is not 
open”?  
 

A20 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q21 Liability – Can you add a provision that that neither party should be liable to the other for 
incidental, consequential, or punitive damages?  
 

A21 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q22 Liability Contractor Vehicle Weight – Can you add a provision that the Contractor should not 
be liable for damage to pavement/driving surfaces due to the weight of a truck or equipment 
(assuming such weight is within applicable regulations)?  
 

A22 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q23 Unsafe Conditions for Service - Can the contract include this statement? While a State of 
Emergency is in effect and/or winds are greater than 30MPH the Contractor is not required to 
provide service due to unsafe conditions.  
 

A23 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
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Q24 Change in Law - There is no provision regarding change in law. Can you add a provision so that 
changes in law that affect performance or the cost of same can be appropriately addressed 
by the parties?  
 

A24 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q25 Force Majeure - Can a Force Majeure provision be added to the contract that would excuse 
delays in performance due to acts of gods, hurricanes, etc.?  
 

A25 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q26 Indemnify - Can language be added to the contract making clear that the Contractor has no 
responsibility to indemnify you for your own negligent or wrongful acts? 
 

A26 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q27 Termination - Are you agreeable to make the right to terminate for convenience upon 90 days’ 
notice mutual as to both parties?  
 

A27 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q28 Current Rates - Please provide the rates you are currently paying for dumpsters, recycle 96-
gallon carts, curbside garbage can, and rolloff containers? Please provide the last 2-months 
invoices if possible.  
 

A28 See attached invoices 
 
 

Q29 Unusual/Extraordinary Cost – is a provision that allows a Contractor to seek an adjustment in 
its prices for unanticipated and unusual/extraordinary cost increases. Can such language be 
added to the parties’ contract that provides for the Contractor to be paid for 
unusual/extraordinary costs?  
 

A29 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q30 Fuel Adjustments – is a provision that allows a Contractor to seek an adjustment in its prices 
for fuel adjustments. Can such language be added to the parties’ contract that provides for 
the Contractor to be paid for fuel adjustments?  
 

A30 This item may be addressed during contract negotiations  
 

Q31 Invoices - Will you accept a Master invoice for all services? The Master invoice will provide the 
detail for each location name, container size, charges, etc.? Or, do you want a separate 
invoice for each location?  
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A31 Separate invoice for each location 
 

Q32 Renewal – Are the renewals by mutual consent?  
 

A32 It is a 5-year contract with no renewal 
 

Q33 Contract Award – What date will the contract begin?  
 

A33 The expected date for the new contract to begin is 9/1/25 
 

Q34 Statement of Bidder Qualifications form. For the Balance Sheet, can Contractor supply 
financials instead of filling out this form on page 3 of 3, page 68 on the IFB document?  
 

A34 Yes 
 

Q35 Pg.7.  

Landfill disposal fees are to be billed separately per site and reimbursed to Contractor by 
PCHA;  

• Please confirm this is relating to the roll-off services only. 

A35 Yes 
 

Q36 Contractor shall maintain record of weight/disposal charges from the Pinellas County Solid 
Waste Division and provide to PCHA upon request. 
 

• Please confirm weights/disposal charges only applies to the 30 yard roll off containers 
as there is no way to weigh the front load and 96-gal carts. 

 
A36 Yes 

 
Q37 Billing 

o At no time shall properties be combined on any invoice. 
o Please confirm that you would like 4 separate invoices. 

 
A37 Separate invoice for each location 

 
Q38 Pg. 8 

Recycling Items: 
Will PCHA consider removing glass from the list of acceptable recycle items as processing 
facilities are restricting glass? 

 
A38 Yes 
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Q39 Pg. 8 
Provide quarterly reports to the Contract Administrator on the volume or tonnage of materials 
collected at each property. 

o Please advise if average weights per container size, frequency, per month can 
be estimated since the front load containers and 96-gallon carts cannot be 
weighed when servicing will satisfy this requirement? 

 
A39 Yes 

 
Q40 Rainbow Village 

After a recent site visit to Rainbow Village it was noted that Rainbow Village is going through 
considerable construction and demolition of the current buildings.  Is the PCHA moving 
towards larger buildings that would use front end containers as opposed to 200 96-gallon 
carts? 

a. If yes, will you change the bid price sheet? 
 

A40 At this time, PCHA is not moving towards larger building. 
 

Q41 Rainbow Village 
Will the contractor be responsible for 200 new carts that might not be used for the entirety of 
the first term? 
 

A41 The remaining units will require the usage of 200 carts.  Currently some larger units (2-3 
bedrooms) require more than one cart per household which equals 200 carts overall.  
 

Q42 Pg. 66 Statement of Bidder’s Qualifications 
Listing of current contracts: (Schedule these, showing nature of the work, gross amount of 
each contract, anticipated dates for completion, name and telephone number of owner’s 
representative.) 

• Since this would require us to list our database of thousands of customers, which is 
also proprietary information, would the references in item 10. fulfill this requirement, 
which is standard in the industry? 

 
A42 Yes 

 

Q43 Pg. 70 
25-50 14-gal 

1. Are these containers to be serviced by the contractor? 
2. Where is the point of collection for these bins. 
3. Since Quantity 25-50 is large difference, can the contractor put an annual rate that 

equals service for one 14-gal bin? 
 

A43 Not applicable. The “25-50 14-gal” language was listed in error and will be removed per 
Addendum #1.  
 
 



Page 8 ~  IFB# 25-004 ~ Q&A 

 
 

Q44 Pg. 71.  
*Charge to Pull/Reset 30 Yard Container 
            Please confirm you would like a haul rate and a disposal rate. 
**Charge to Deliver/Pull 30 Yard Container 
            Please confirm you would like a delivery rate, haul rate and disposal rate. 
If the landfill increases their disposal rate, can that increased percentage be passed on to 
PCHA? 
 

A44 Yes, with notice and documentation to support increase 
 
 

 

 










































